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HISTORY OF BALIARAT TRAUAYS - "mg]-zggg By W. JACK.
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PART T - BALLARAT HORSE TRANS: =

T In 1885, the City Council asked leave to construct & tramway,
but the Covernment was slow in granting the concession. fesars. Thompson
and lloore of Adeluide made the most favourable offer. The Council desired
a cable system, but it was found, on inquiry, to be expensive. Then a
cable line from the City to the Gardens was proposed, with a horse service
to Soldiera' Hill and Ballaret South; but the suggestions were not carried
out.  In Septewber, 1886, Edward Thompson obtained the concession and
delegated the power to a Compeny. On 3rd. October, 1887, the deed was
signed by Messrs. Collard Smith (isayor), and Cr. C. C. Shoppee on behslf of
the Council, dessrs. W. Smith, Henry Gore, W. Brown (Secretary) for the
Company, wnich contained 32,000 shares at 42 each. Direectors elected were
Messrse Hs. Cuthbtert, He Core and W. Smith. The contract was let to “dward
thompson of #deluides for & horse drawn mervice.

Five ascres of land were purchased »nd twenty cottages of
four rooms each for the drivers and stablemen were erccted; also a stable
230 x 58' for the sccommodation for 100 horses. The shed for the trams
still stands for the present day electric cars, but has had much reconditioning.
It is stated that ship carpenters helped to build the depot.

The first rail was laid on the 18th October, 1887, and six
miles of track wes put down in 6 .weeks. 1,000 tons of rails were ordered
at «7.10. O per ton. Fifteen double deck tramcars were used for a start.
The first line to be put down was sround the Juke from Crenville Street,

Via Sturt Street West and Ripon Stroet.. Then followed Ballarst South %o
Rubicon Street Via Skipton Streety to Soldiers' Hill Vius Iydiard Street
North, and on to the lake Via Macarthur Street, and along Drummond Street
South to Skinton Street and Darling Strect. Horse trums did not enter the
old Town Council of ‘allarat fast territory, which comuenced east of
Grenville Street. (The Town Coumeil beceme part of the City Council in May,
1921). Rallarat Bast wanted their owm tram system, and on 25th June, 1888,
canferred with ldr. Wllison of the firm of R~oth, Ellson * Coy., Electrical
Engineers, who had the contract for the battery electric tramways in Bendigo.
With the Mayor and Councillors, he inspected the warious routes and
gredients, and was very fuvourably impressed with the prospect. He ;
coneidered there a grand opening for clectric tranways in Bsllarat wast, and
said he could see no dfficultica in the gradients, nuch steeper hills than
that in Victoria Street having been surmounted in other plsces.  The Town
Council were hirhly <lated with the interview, und were senguine as to the
outcome when tenders ware called for. #last  The elation was not Justified
by events, even if it may actuully have been by the position at the time, end
Rallarst East had to weit for iteiélectric trams.

The cars running in Baliarat City were the Stevenson,
smericen pattern, built by Iuncan‘end Fraser of rdelaide, but they were put
together at the dendouree Depot. = They were bullt of ash, elm, tern hickory
and iflauri, with special staire beck aend front. Eech car seated 4 passengers.
The first horses were driven overland from Adelaide, and the men with their
families who cume to opersate the system. re R. = Moore was Menager, Peter
Giles (Foreman) and later Menager, Churles Ruffle (Secretary).

The conditiens reguired were - Trams to run from 8.00 aem.
until 11.00 peins 3 services to be of 15 minutes' to 30 minutes' maximum; farcs
3d. for 3 miles, and on a basis not to excecd & ld. per mile.

On the 21st December, 1887, the formal opening tcok place.
Three hundred ladies and gentlemen were invited by ire % irs. R. Te Hoore
( 8ix cars were provided, to make the first&rip. The start wag witnessed by
s large crowd of spuctators. Cubmen orgsnised & counter demonstration and
drove along in procession in fronb of the, trans with various placards on
their cubs.  Soue delay occurred by trems getting off the rsils, but the
Cardens werc cventually reached. The basnquet at the Gardens was catered
for by Ce tcIntyre. The Chairman, Cre. Collard Smith (layor), members of
both Houses of Parliament, !fayors and Councillors of PRallsrat, Ballarat East
and Sebactopol were present. Cre Claxton proposed "Succese to the Ballarati
Tramway Company” and said it wes & red letter dsy. On the return to the
City, a few more derailments occurred.
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The actual start was made on the Monday ( Boxing Day), 26th
December, 1887, but- only three truas were in service and naturally were
packeds  On the 28th, four treme were running and the system worked more
smoothly. The trams werc painted yellow ond drawn by 3 horses. The cars
were 12 feet in length (2 had 14 fest body frames) and their tere weight was
3% tons. Seating capacity was 44 passengers. The doors opening into the
saloons were manufactured by J. . Jones Sons, Tram Builders of Westtroy,
NeY., U.8...  The builders' plate, made of copper, had the firm's neme cast
gn both sides. This plete, oval in shape, was fitted in the centre of the
oor.

“he public were requested to load up at the rost Office, as
in those days the out-vound trans used the north side, while the south side
track was uscd by City bound trams. On the Gardens route, loops were View
Point, Dowling Strioet, Cardens, and nl{red Strest.  The tram services
supplied in the mein were , hour Crenville Street to Ripon Street; half-
hourly either way to the Cardens. The hour-and-a-half service via the
Convent and 1D und 45 minutes past the hour via the Boatsheds. The
Curdens via Sturt Strect West ren east of the convent into Wendouree
Parade, Via .lorrison Strect. a4t that period, the land through which
Hamilton Avenuc nov runs, wad private ground owned by Lady lamilton, who,
years af'ter, offercd a strip of leéend to the City Council so thut & publie
street could be nudee A helf-hour service wag provided in facarthur and
Iydiard Strcote with a single car. AL Brench stsble for exchange of horses
was located in the spacious yard of the Princioss Royel Hotel in lMacarthur
Street, and lcter moved to Creswick Road. The Ballarat South services were
20 ninutes, vis Skipton Street, and along Drummond Street south a single
deck car run & shuttle scrvice every half hours

The Rubicon Btreet cervice, and later Sgbastopol, commenced
at the Yown Hall { armetrong Strect)s  The route was extended from Kubicon
Street to :juccn Strest, Sebistopol, in April 1893.

it Tirst, o lot of opposition to this extension was offered,
but that was later overcome and the trams went through every 20 minutes from
730 geme until 10.00 pela

The depot luy ncar the Royel lail Hotel, in South Sebastopol.
On the 9th October, 190%, s fire dustroyed the depot, together with 13 horses.

The Menagers, during the horse regime, were HMessrs. Hoore,
Gilus, Fay, Milner, Hodgetts, and Cumwow.  idrs Welter J. Dunstan, as
Accountant, handled the last btusiness for the horse tram Company, and as
chicf fccountant, carricd out similer dutics for the Electric Bapply Coy. of
Victoriz, iire Dunstan also served with the .E.C. as Office lianager, at
Wendouree Power Stution before he rotired in 1946.

'The maintensnce of the horse traawuy wag & considerable Jobe
There were always &t least 50 horses at Wendouree, and they were well cared
for. An 8 mepehe schedule wes fixed, but in actual practice, ncver
excaeded 6 mapshe There were L. grooms, each having a personsl supervision
of 12 horses, and cach brought his own pairs to and from the trams. Each
tram had not more than 2 rune per day, excepting on extra busy days, such as
Railway Picnic, Euster, Christmas, etc., when all reserves were utilised.
The horses werce worked in teamss They were rubbed down constantly, and open
boxes for sick horses were provided. The length of service aversged seven
years, a notable exception being "Queen" who worked for 13 years. Each
horse had its name peinted above ita stalle  Four trams ran daily on the
Cardens route, one hour per trip. The time table was amended to 8.30 acme
first, and 10.00 pem. last cux in luter ycsrs.

The lighting system consisted of two kerosene lamps fixed
into & glass casé in oppositc corners of the saloon, and o large headlight
which was strapped to the forward upstairs rail and carried round by the
driver at each terminal change.

The drivers did not eadhere rigidly to uniform. During
the long winter months, they had need for warm and waterproof coverings
Drivers were issuad a whigtle with which they wsrned other road users.

"he weges of merried men were 36/~ per weck, with a cottage,
while the conductors rccejved 1L./- per wecek.e It wss the practice for men
to work throughout with 1. hours for lunch and an hour off again for tea,

»
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& day off once a month. The employ<ce nuwabered zbout 5G. The conductors
wore uniform, the cap being the oid pill box style.

Tures were collected by hand, ond tickets issued, then came
"receivers", bell reglstering, carricd by the conductor, with a chute to
receive the coin inscrted by the paussenger. Later, tickets urranged in
wallets were ro-introduced; firce as stated did not excced 3d., but
sectionsl tickets § a 1/- wore groatly uscd. In winter, fresh straw spread
on the floors provided sone warnthe.

The troms were patronised by sll classcs of people, bicycles
were priced beyond the ordinary person's means, and privite conveyances were
not so convenient - harnecssing up,; cte., took time.

During the winter, the smell saloons were crowded, and the
open upper-deck seats cold and deserted. It was different in the summer when
people always chose to ride "up above". “xtra horses assisted the trams from
Grenville Street to the Post Ofricc. The hill driver would return with his
horses to repest the work. There were no centre poles, horses being controlled
by hand; & strap fixed to the breechings was a restraint against
fractiousness, and the hend bruke wos «ffective.

The trarway cottages were built in Cregory Street, west of
Depot, =and were known us Tramway Row, and were alse noted for their neatness
and their gardens.

At Scbastopol, the depot functicned almost independentiy of
the main depot, but before electrification of the Lake section, all
requirements camc from ¥Wendoures Stores.  The old portable chaff-cutter
engine was kept very active, espeeially before Christmae * New Year holidays.
Tt is estimsted Lhat 1,000 bogs of chaff would be cut to curry over that busy
traffic season. Almost 50 bags would be sent to Scbastopol twice a week.

The lozding, purticulurly on Saturdsy nights ( shopping night)
wae heavy on the city - Sebastopol line, =nd a top deck conductor was required.
He collected the fures on the upper deck and front stairs end platform, then
joined the passing tram at South Strect loop to go out with the next load.

An extra car wasg allotted for this hoavy night's traffic. There were loops
near South Strcet, Iatrobe Strecet, Rubicon Street . and near South Star Wine.
The blades were kept in position with blocks of carriage spring rubber -
simple &nd effective then. :

iention of "South Star" rcealls the mines and the pay days.
When those days arrived, sovereigns beceme abundent, end the miners,
particularly the younper men, appearcd to gain much pleasure in offering
sovercigns for their farcs - of course, a conductor's cesh became exhausted,
and names hud to be obtained. In one instance, the conductor made a lust
desperate round up of money, and, getting possessicn of another iold piece,
took the remaining fares from onz tendercr. Some cxcitement and amuscment
followed. The conductor was threatened with all sorts of reprisals, but
there was not much gold offered thereufter.

: Every Sundeay mornings Church trame ran. The Church Special
from Sebastopol left the Borough at 7.30 aem., sand cime through Drummond
Street South into Sturt Strect as for as Dawson Street. Ister, via Skipton

Street to Snows {now Ayera). + special was provided on the Gardens line alsoe

On the Drummond Strcet South line, « single deck trem run daily
from 9.00 seme until 5.00 p.me, giving 4 hour service. It hes been stated
that this single deck tram was corverted in 1888 o =« Julien's system of
storage batterics  There werc 96 cell storage Latteries, ceach cell measured
&Y x6"x10" , arranged in boxus and placed on trays, 12 to each tray, giving
sufficient encrgy for 50 to 80 miles. In its first {riele, which were along
Drummond Strect, « speed of 12 mep.he was obtainely  *he dute being 12th
October, 1888. The sccond trizl was on the 15th October, 1888, when a run
to the City via Sturt Strcecet was held. These trials were cuccessful, but
nothing became of it. The car wes storad at the Darling Street Depot.

This depot wus in Darling Street on the South fast corner lccation, and in
1505, moved to Scbastopol. It was necessary for Scbustopol to supply fresh
horscs for the Drummond Street line by various procedures. A lad would
mount one and leud another, returning from Durling Street with horses to be
spelled. 4t other times, the Scbastopel trum driver would bring & third.
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Rail and general lrack sicaning wee pwrt of ths daily cound. The rouds for
ordinary traffic were nothing 1ike those today, ond thi #ves troch ~uPe vad in
consequencc. A water pipe vias run te thé railse at tne corrssal Gtacs end
Drummond Strects. on the north sidc, ond washed the rails clsyward,
considerably sidiag the propress of the horses up hili, Lt mebe Somel, a
spare conductor nu«d this jobL ov track attention.:

Storus meds o det of trouble for the trams. Tara.
of the track being cov.read with gravel and silt. Clerciade v A0
Street North) was a noted Hud place, even three heraes havise o
meke hecdweay.

The dastinetion signe were large metal plases earicied en the
upper deck roiling, while ¢ Jong puinted board was fixsd to the sides between
the two decks.

Twenty tov= (24 ) horse trams were tia: telsl nalor in flect;
a8}l being double deckers with eng coxception - it being 2 si 2l Qock sales:
Cale

The adninistrat.on office of the Comnanr v+ tiest i Caum

electricul and rceeiving depertuents were housed.

as
o

Much of the sbovc horsc firamtistory from notes syrpli~l on o Jalto
Inspector James.
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ZART IT o~ JUBCHRIC "ReLS:

In 16585, the firet wower Stution was opened with u tiny plant
of only 25 h«pe This wes locstod in Dana Street, where (incRobertson' s
Warchousc now stindse  Nine yeers later, the Duns Street plant was increased
to skout 100 hep. The plant was frequently cdded to- in order to meet the
growing demand for clectricity, but by 1904, the resources of this little
power stoation was scriously ovoertoxed. 1t was then that the Bleetric Supply
Caoye of Victoriu fininced with Englisih capitul, bousht the franchise, and on
the 23rd. bU&Uuh) 1 04, the foundation stonc of an up-to-date Power Stetion
was laid by Ore e Ponrse, Muoyor of Bullerat, and Cr. W. D. licKee, Msyor of
Ballaret Bast, on thue site in Wendource Prrsde, previously occupicd by “"Fry's"
Flour mill; pirts of the nill' s mossive blucstone walls continue to form part
of the Power Station structures Concuwrrently with the purchase of the
electricity supply, the new Company bought out the 0ld horse trams and
proceeded to instul the electric overhewd trolley systam.

The original plent put down in the new power stution in
1904, consisted of dircet current generctors driven by reciprocating steam
engines, und had a total c»p ity of 900 kilowstte. In 1913, the plent was
.nlurged to 1,200 kilowsttse Ty 1324, the demund for eluctricity had sgain
exceeded the eapreity of the plant, snd it was decided to chunge over to
clternating current nwchines driven by modern steam +urtines. Theace were
instelled in 1925, and had s cipacity of 3,300 kilowstts.

During the boom peried 1925-1928, the demend for electricity
increased r:pidly, but the setivities of the Rlectric Supply Co. were some-
what curtailed, duc to the feet thet the date wus approsching when the
franchise und<r which it operited the undertaking, expired-

The Blectricity Supply Cay., sold out to the State
Electricity Cowsission in 1931, but thc Compuny continucd to operate on
behalf of the Stute Electricity Commission until the 30th June, 1934.

Bleetric trams first ren in Bellorat on 18th August, 1905.
Twelve cuars were svailable, asnd were groduslly increascd to 20 in 1906, and
to 25 in 1912,

The routes available for truffic on thoe opuning doy were as
follows i-

Grch111L Strect (City) to Gurdens via Convent.

) L ¥ ] " Ripon Strect.
" " " " Crepory Street, in lydiord Strect North-
" " 1 Y Stawell Strm;t, ‘in Victoria Street.
" " " " Madstone Strec wts Ple:asanta
n u " " Yiseorthur Str._,,t;, viu Drumnaond Street NOI‘tha

The clectric truns wore given a secrct tri:1 run during the
previous night to thc opening date, but the drivers clanging the congs so
much soon brought the people out of thuir beds cad in night attire. hey
formed ¢ puard of honour around the Purude. The new system was officially
declared open next doy (the 18th August, 1505), in the prescnce of a large
and represent:tive gathering beaded by luyors Je Me Barker (City), and
J« Re Elsworth (Vowr Council), wnd accompanied by the Winis tcr of tincs
(MTO Je iicleod ’\)t e eers. s eott H(;‘nn@tt, W L A ’ and e Je Yo
ieDonald) e fu €, fnd many othors. The vigitors were welcomed by ifre Ben
Deuakin (Mancger) ot the Fower lHouse; :nd here the inyors cuch sturted an
engine, and the dinister the third, znd there was much speech making. Then
a proccssion of new curs was mwde up, No. 1 hceding the line.  Moyor Barker
muuttm:cmﬁmﬂowmq'mbbmﬂxweoimn Ceos Inurens, who had & similar
teek at the opening of bthe fendipo clectric truwuys, two yeurs previcus.

The trims were geily decornted with flags. ks the line of onrs was coming
dowvm Cunp Mill ( Sturt Straet) oppesite the “Couricr" 0ffice, the brukes on
the list ear foiled, end it erashed into the onc in front. The windows of
both curs woere smeshed, od the oceupsants who hed been sitting in ostate,
made the quickest exit comp.tible with the dignity of the ocec:usions However ,
not much harin wco done, wnd the procersion went on into the Town of Bpllarat
Bast, and up 't. Pizssunt wnd the Orphanage s und then retarned to the City
Hull, where the custoucry " sunptous repast wae weiting thom, together with
quite a lot morc epcechess ‘fhe opening cercumony wes & geeat suvocess:



The trams sested 32 und 36 parcsengerc. Out of the 24 horse
trams, twelve wore converted tn clectric curs, the conversion be ding done by
DunCun ) lraewr, who hud built the cirs in the f'irst place. The horse trams
were lengthened =t bhoth onds, wnd thesc portions became the open nmokin[
compsrtments and the drivers' cabins. these 12 cars received the Nos. 1,4,

6, 10 to 18. They sested 32 pusscngers. Bight of the other horse curs were
rctained for use we truilers to the motor cars. Several were also transferred
to Bendigo for similar use.

Six smull siloon cleetric trams woere purchssed from the
Sydney Tramwoys in Pobruery, 1905, and these were wlso convertcd to a similer
pattern to the 12 rebuilt Ballirut cars. Of the six Sydney cers,; three of them
wure the first slceetric trams to be used in Sydney- Their numbers were 1,2,
3, of th: North Oydney systen -nd HeTC built in U.S.L. by Stcphenson. The
Ballarat 'nunbers sllotted then were 2, 5, cnd 7. It is interesting to note
that they had their trolloy poli: busc fixed on one 8ide of the cars instesd
of the usual centre of roof, when they arrived. After alterations in Ballarat,
the poles were fixed in the usucl plicus The other 3 Sydney trams were the
NoeSeWe Treaways "C" cluse 4-wheclurs, end very similer to the sbovementioned
tramse Thesc were Nose Ui, 15, 16, built by Hudson of Sydney und becene our
Nos. 5, 8, and .  Thu ex-Sydney trems hid o longer scloon tnd scated 36.

A1l the 18 cure (Nos. 1 to 18) were equipped w1th now Srill 21E trucks and
driven by 2x30 h.p- notors controlled by Westinghouse 90M controllers, except
No. 7, which had Westinghouse T. 1.1, Tere weight of car being 10 tons.

In 1506, two opun sumier curs were wuilt by Duncen & Freser
and received the Nos. 19 =nd 20. They were open cross seaters ("tOuStrdeS")
tnd carricd L0 passengpurs scuted. The trucks cre £aid to heve been re-
conditioned "Peckham' from the cx. "C" cliuss Sydney triuas. The summer cears
h=d 2x35 hepe imotors wnd ifo e 20l controllors. Woirht of car unloaded
9= fone, The traas were painted red :nd white with blue seroll work, the
car numbers appeured inside the tras : v first, bat wfter 1911, .the -nunbers
were painted on the :prons and sides of ctch cir. tbout 1913 onwards, Nos.
1 to 18 had Bulliret Tramwnys printed in blue ond gold on the rocker panel
ebove the trucks. Trailers were printed chocolate end yellow. The
lighting of the traas sas providel by & eircuit of five 16 ¢.p. 100 volt
carbon £ileamunt lumps. Tht: e corbon lemps became brittle through
vibration, and rejuircd nuny rceplocings. Two eircuits were introduced
later and were u_se:fl for destinution sign illumindtion. Each treamn wos
provided with 2 hurricrne lanp for aucrgency ond o trol kit was pert of <
tran equlpuwnt.

The cerswere equipped with = regnetic track breke for
CMErgency purposct. It was o« powerful troking :sgency, and the pussengers
well knew when its wpplieition woe reeessory, and the trmm suffered
usuelly by ite severity, while tho responsible purty cscaped. The trailers
were used on cvery specicl ocension te & grect aldvantige, and were popular
with the public. It has been seid thut the eleetrie trwi rotors drew the
edditionul burden without wny difficulty.

A horee tran ran for 2 couple of wiecks nn the Mount
leasant line owing to & snort section not wired, but the line &t that time
terminated 4t Gladstono Street.  Consideridle locel weight cuused the
tramwsy authority to continue the track to Cobden Street.

Stores were supplied from the Power Stotion Stores
Depurtment , <nd conveyed to the depot by means of « truck druwn behind a
trem on the Ripoen Strect line. The lest time the writer sow this
gonveysne: was sbout the midlle of 1935. 4 line for the chove purpose was
built from the Ripon Strect lin: inte the power stetion yards (Wendource
Perzde frentage). . This spur linc was pulled up when Ripon $t/View Point
line was reladd cnd re-sléepercd aroupl sbout 1937/30. It wes cn this line
that the last Goarduns trom wos stabled for the night, =nd it woul? be the
first cur out next morning. Tt wss known +s the FPower lousc tram)
unfortunstely it is not known vhor thie "service" coised. Horse trams still
ran in Skipton Strect to Schustopel, o n? long Drummond 8t. South to Derling
Etreets From 1507, two ¢leetric trans ron to Durling Street from the City,
glving © 15 minute servic., snld during 1911, the clectric system advanced to
Rubicon Street with « tran cvery 20 minutes.  The horse line in Skipton
Street wue eliminszted, in 1909, ¥u+ for scrv yours cf'terw: rdf u single horse
trum rin between Sebustopol wn? Rubicon Street, where prssengors changed
trimse
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During the chungeover perind, snd whilst the lines were being relaid beyond
Darling Stre .4 in Skipien Struct South, the pussengeres were conveyed over

the ares by mcons of horee drawn dregs wnd wogonetiess A wrangle over

fares held up the ducision cn the clectrificction of the Schustopol line
beyond Rubicon Struete It is interesting that Quring this poriod, the men
who guided the conversion of tha tram service, Mr. Benjamin Deakin, suggested
thet treckloes trolley treme could ke used on the Sebestopol rune le felt
that they might be £ porsiblc salution to the rfures disputes which hinged on
the higher instnllition end averhesd cost of the line in comparison to the
other shorter runse Finully, all difficulties werc resolved, and in 1913
horse trams s:id ! pood-bye' to Bellarat ~ ut Jewst os far as the tramways were
concerncd.  llowever, the old 60 1lbs. r=il had not been replaced with a
heavier reil during conversion, and smch of the criginal redils are still in
use tadaye In 1912, three large semi-closed eross serter traans were
purchased from Duncen znd Fraser, snd these are the only electric trems that
have been entirely new to run in Bellsrat.  They had "Brush" trucks,
equipped with 2 x 38 hep. motors, Thompson =ni Huston B49CC controllers.

Thes: three tr:me were numbersd 21, 22, 23, «nl were known as the "Sobastepol”
typce They had cross scots with o centre aisle, cnd seated 40 persons. At
one time, centre scet plecee were fitted noreoss the aisle tn the cross seats,
but they wére only used in the fine warm westher. loter, these seat pieces
were done swey with altogethers These trame were alwsys used on the
Sebusteopol line, meinly to Rubicon Street only. Under heavy loeds, the

axle boxes continued to bresk fror the truss buxr, costing the Go‘npuny as much
as 300 per year. The breskape wee leter overcoms by fixing & eap over axle
and &xle box horns. The 4det vae invented by the local foreman and has since
been copied by other tramwcy systems.

In 1:07, an Englich water tram was imported and built by
Brush. It wes used up to 1918, cnd then stored outside until 1925, when it
was scruppeds

It was on the 14th April, 1915, when the Scbastopnl line was
openoed for elcctric trams. & four tram programwie was introduced, and this
table ren and served from 4pril, 1913, te Awust, 1037 - 24 years. A 20-
minute service te Scbastopoel from 7.00 aeme until mid-day and from 12.00
Noon t0 3400 peme & 12 minute service given between the City and Rubicon
Strect, and 24 minutes between euch boyond, reverting to the morning
schedule agoin from 8¢00 pems to 1100 peni

In the eourse of tice, and ofter wuch outery, the un-
sheltered motornen was provided with weather shiclids. Noe. 10 was the first
tram tn be so fitted, but on one end enly for experiment in 1913« The old
% goose neck broke handles had to be wltercd for inside use. It was some
time before the rest of the curs werc so equipped. While the brake handles
were eltercd like the rest, the two summer curs (Noss 19 nd 20 were not
fitted with weather shields).

A good degl of new idecs were introduced during 1913 /1, and
became necessary when: the fare box system caaz into being in June, 1913,
mzking the cars a one nan systent. Conductors were wlweys used on the two
summer cars &8 well as on Noese 21, 22 nnd 23« This required alterations
to the trams by having gates hung at cuch entrance and "ENTER FRONT END"
notices were printed on then.  The open ends ( smoking compartments) had the
seats arrcnged for interior riding only and the long steps replsced by s
short hinged type. Drop signs showed cither “PaY A4S YOU EN'ER" or "PAY AS

TOU IZAVE" procodurce

Fram 1905 until sbout 1912, the dcstination signs were only
metal plates hung over the uprons in front of the drivers  Then cume square
L-sided revolving boxes pluced on thu cunopy, snd with "bulls eye" glass
night colours. Jrbout 1041, this gave way to a rvvolvmg linen sign in a
squere upright freme  snd glues slides over the top, changeable by sliding
across to an apeture.

Coloured enwmelled square route vlates ceme out 2lso in 1913.
They were cazrried on tho upper front ¢nd of the cuars and on the sides sbove
" the centre windowse. -

These route plotes and night colours were done aw:y with in
1934 The following colowrs were iscued (-



Colowr of Plute Iine

Green Gurlens viu Convent

Red Gurdens vis Ripon Street

Blue : RKubicon Street only

Bluc with white centre Scbastopol

White ~ Drumgond Street North

Yellow . Lydiard Street North

Green . 5 Victoria St. (celled Orphenage)
Red lite Plessunt

4t night, the destinztion box would show eume’ colour as route
plilt@u

Up to cbout 1923, there usud to be & {imcs board neer the
present day waiting shelter in lower Sturt Street. On the baard there was
& clock faces cach showing the tim: of the next outbound tram on ench line.
Lbove the clock fuccs was the route colowr pointed one

sbout 1524, the traaways purenased their first and only bus.
It was an "Internctionul" with = rcur ond luading, und purchased second hund
from s lte Pleasunt operstors It wus tirst ueed on the Mount Pleasant run
and later on Victoria Strcete Tt wss not usaed after 1926.

ihe wogee paid ot the comncncement of the service were -
iiotormen 8d. per hour, then on Lhe 18th February, 1906, Bzde » and on 25rd.
Peburary, 1906, 9. per hours The conductors received 18/6d. per weck,
then from the 18th llovamboer, 190H, L1 per waike the conductors made &
demonstration on Railemy Ficnie Diy, 1906, «nd the trams d4id not run till
lute in the merning . LEain in 1908, the conduectors struck; but the trams
were ménned by various other cmployoce. On 1lst Dece ber, 1912, ir. Justice
Higgine preqnivu 4t the Fedorel <rbitration Court end having heard evidence,
the wage award wus unnounced cg - ldotormen 1/],d. per hour for a4 52 hour
week (13 daye per forinipht); senior conductors, =dults, 1/- per hour, snd
Juniors 32/64. weekly for 6 months, snd then Jq/lod. In addition, time
end & quurter rates were gfrantc! or certidin public holidays. One very
dieturbing event rather marred the good rel:tionchip between the Company
znd the tram men. Thet was the strike of 1922 (Thursday, 20th April, to
Yth May, inclusive), mostly over the fars box system. It wus referrcd to
the arbitration Court =nd Hr. Justice Chorles Powers, after muking n
personal inspection of the work, Accided that the fure boy system night
continue in o provincicl City such ite Ball-rst.

In 1530, thore wae & preat change, - Trome Nos. 10,15,18,19,
and 20 werc token out of sorvice and sol“. The writer resembers having a
ride to the Gurdens vic Sturt StPCut West on & Sunduy wfternoon (February,
1930) in one of the swnuer cars. They were not scen after thiuts  The body
of Noe 20 stood for some years in the Country Rouzds Bourd!'s Depot at
Walleces 1t wae rusoured thet during their iust sumer sezson, Nose 19 snd
20 had their "Peckham" trucks replaced with-a 23rill 21E type. Owing to the
low cuzr body frames, the 218 wos not o success, ae when the car was loaded,
the wheels cut intoc the frames when rounding the curvess .

The wbove five trane were replsced with a more modern stock
from the Melhourns % tintropoliten Trorwmiye Bourds ‘the first vehicle being
e & e To Re Hoe 108, and becuue Noe 24 ut Balleruts It v the first tram
to have air brakes in Ballarat. f'our others of the sue type arrived soon
after cuarrying Nos., 110, 111,116, :nd 113 which received the local 25, 26,
27y and 23, respeevivelys  sbout this time it was decided to replice the
¥%goose neck" brake hundles on Nog. 21, 22 % 25 with o vheel type and the
Driver was provided with & sact.

The next Tow yenrsg HSuw the end of Nos. 2 ,1{-,,(). ,6 17 ’8 29 ,J.l)lj,
and L. In thedir place, the Moo.ife OB provided their sinple truck cars
Nos. 82} 73 3 GV’ 76 and LJ) t o become: our Hog. 16, 29 18 y 19 nnd 206 ALt
first, the 10 ex. Melbourne trans were not cltered end were painted in the
0ld Compuny' ¢ colours  Ked with ycllow rocker puncles By this time, all
but one of the trailers hed been solle  The exception being kept for the
carriage of the tram crew' s bicyzlcs between the depot and the City Office.
The trailer would be hitched behind & eity-bound service car to Grenville
Street, where it would be unlosaded und then re-losded with the evening
shift's bicycles und hauled back to the depot by the next (urden's trom.
This "service" worked until sbout 193./3h when the trailer pave way to

present day arranganent - t.e., by motor frucke.
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Yhe last o the old-type traas lasted until 1936 (Nos. 1,3,12,
17!21 and 22)s  Noe 23 wus converted to a water scrubber car in 1934, and
still does service. In March, 193%, No. 27 appeered in the old S.E.C. standard
colours - dark green and cream - being the first car to be so treateds In
the same yeer, 5.5.C. took delivery of 4 further ie%.M.T.B. trams Nos. 183,184,
186 and 189, being the ex. Hawthorn Tramway Trust's csrs. (hotually, these cars
were ordered for the Pootscray Tremway Trust, but the ife % M.TeB. took over
before the cars were completed, =nd allotted them Hawthorn Tramwey Trust's
nwabers). The Lallarat numbers allotted to these 4 trams were, 50,%1,32 end
334 Nos 30 wis the Tirst of the "improved" type and first saw "light" as a
gpecial on 12th September, 1935. It was inspected by the S.E.C. Officers
from lielbourne, Ceelong, Bendigo «wnd Rallerat.

4 different type of trem crrived in February, 1936. It was a
4L-wheel straijht sill semi-closcd combinstion car, being a "(" class M.%&iis T. B.
No. 152. (A former No. 2 of the Mitzroy, Northcote and Preston Trust). It
first saw service as No. 22, bul in November, 1938, it was re-numbered 29, when
this number becaise vacant after the first 29 became the precent day 17.

When the S.X.C. purchased the 4 “"Birney" cars from Adelaide in
1936, after the Port Adelaide cystem closed down, the Birney trams were sent to
Geelong &nd 4 exs Melbourne cuars were trancferred to Ballarat from CGeelong.
The 4 trams sent were Ceelong's 28, 27, 30 and 29, snd becume Ballarat's Nos.
11,12,1%5 & 14, respectively.  They arrived in 1936.

In October, 1937, 3 similer trams were purchased from the
Wunicipal Tramway Trust, adelaide. They were the W7o 9. "A" Class WNos, 10,
69 and 92 and lsater, when repainted, received the following Nos. 21,23 and 22.
Tt is interzsting to note thet they rin for soue time sporting Adelaide's
colour, =nd Nos. No« 69 was not repuinted until eurly 1939. No. 21 was
altered to the Balluret "stundard" type, but the other two had only minor
alterationse No. 69 was-deeorated with paper flowers for the 1938 Floral
Carnival, while No. 29 {ex. Molbourne "(" class) was done up for the 1939
Floral show. Thwring ite first dey, 8 pirl hostesses were on boerd - date
being 2nd ierch, 1979.

For the Coronation of hing CGeorge VI, Nos. 25 was decorated
for the occasion. It run for > days - 12th, 13th and Wth uay » 1937, and
was still painted red s«nd cream.

During the last Coronation of Q(Quecn Tlizsbeth IT, the local
trams carried two flegs wmounted vertically fore and cft on the roof.

During the lust wer, the trems gove o good cervice and
carried some huge loads. Owing to ifanpower shortage, ludy conductresses
were employed - the firet being in cherpe of o trum was on the 1Jth
September, 19.2, while the last girl booked off on the Sth July, 1946. At
one period, 2% conductrasses were emnploycd.

The {first of the¢ modern fleet to te written off wus the ex.
Adelaide car. Noe 22, which had &n argument with an army cur at the corner of
Dsnz and Drummond Streets on 284h July; 1944. The tram was almost cut in two
and 12 pussengers 1n2urud- At first, it was decided to rebuild the car,
actually, Mre Iyons (Cur builder) hud parts ready for the rebuilding when
the Me%.ile TeBe offered their "C" class maximun traction bogie cars for sale.
Tt wae then decided to scrap the idclaide L-whecler und purchase the bigger
vchicle., The first bogie arrived on the Yellow Express road transport
vehicle on the 1sth October, 1945,  The tram being No. 117, which saw
service on the Hawthorn @ 0» zs their No. 1l &nd was one of the trams to open
that system on the 6th April, 1916, Noe. 117 had two trial runs on lMonday,
22nd October, 1945, snd T wae invited to be on board. This tram had its
first public euting on th: Sunday - 28th October, 1945. Tt did not receive
its Ballarat number until December of that year when it came out as No. 22,
being the 4th tram to carry this number. However, in 1952 it wae rcnumbered
37. On the Zith October, 1945, another boyic trum arrived - ex. Melbourne
Nos 132 - becoming our Ne. 1be It went into service on lith December, 1945«

In 1847, two further bogics were obtuined from the Board.
They were No. 137, which zrrived on 22nd Junuary, 19&?, and Noe. 124 on the
28th Yobruary, 147, Nos 157 wee first used on the Hegatts traffic to View
Point on let Werch, 1947, but carricd no number, snd it ran in that
condition for some months. Folding pates were fitted to the end entranoces.
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Early in 1943, after a repaint ond deors fitted instead of the folding gates,
it was noticed in truffic with the number 34 ( 137 was Hawthorn's No. 31,
first in service on the 30th September, 1918, while No. 124 was ex. Hawthorn
TeTs Nos 18, in scrvice on 6th April, 1916). No. 124 was altered and re-
painted before going in local service &8 Nos 35 in June, 1947.

With these L bogie trams in scrvice, two of the old L-wheelers
(Nose 23 and 29) were rarely used. Noe 29 was last used on liyth Maxrch; 1948.
It was scrapped on >rde. Septemher, 1950, und body sold on the 13th November,
1950, The total Ballarat mileage run was 98,416 milese Noe 23 lasted a
little longer. It wes pointed gold bronze in December, 1950, and later
fitted with « pick and spade puinted silver and other decorations attached.
Tt was the trowveys' contribution to the Gold Centenary Celebrations 1851 -
1$51. Tt mede quite & stir when it first ceme out on 16th idarch, 1551, and
ran daily until the Jaster Uonday 26th larch, 1951. The car then stocd in
the Depot until August, 1951, Owing to power restrictions, the gold tram
made only onc appearunce after dusk when it ran for about 2 hours in Sturt
Street on Wednesdey, 15th Aupust, 1951, The final day wes on lMonday, 20th
August, 1951, when & public holiday wves held in Ballarat, and old 23 ran as a
Speciel to meet Cobb & Coe. cosch at Victoria Street at 3.00 peme  Its final
run was when it left the city for th: depot viu Ripon Street at 4L.00 psme
The body was =0ld to iirs Te Iyons of Nevigetor on the 20th hApril, 1952. Noe
23 was ex. &dsladide 69, «nd went into service in Adelsids on 30th October,
1509, and built up = milesge of 632,758 and 131,546 miles in Ballarat.

The three last trime to arrive in Ballerat were also maximum
traction bogies huilt for the ex. Prahran & Malvern unicipal Tramways, and
they differed slightly to the cx. Hawthorn bogies, which were built much
later. These 3 hogics were numbered 41, 42 wnd 35, which arrived on lst
idey s 1951, 22nd Hay, 1951, 13th June, 1951, respectively. These additional
care made room =t the depot somewhtét crowded, so it was decided to lsy &
track at the re«r of west dejpot roud :nd store ex. W%lLTeie 35 on it.

Noe 41 wus the first of the 5 trems to be reconditioned, and
it went out into service as Ho. 36 during October, 1951. Exe. 42 vas the next
to be attended to, wnd it came out ag No. 39 in Decenber, 1951. The last one
was exe 35 to receive an overhaul snd a repaint, and No. 4O was the number it
received, and noticed in traffic in lMay, 1952.

So much for theetram curs themselves, we now cen deal with the
track and service.

When the Stete Blectricity Commission took control in 1934, a
start was made in October of that year to recondition the tracks, which had
got into a very wud state. The tracks only rested on blue stone blocks, and
were held apart bty tie rods. The f'irst scction to be reconditioned was the
south track in Sturt Street from lydiard Strect to Pleasant Street, and then
back to the start on the north sides This work meant slecpering the whole
system and packing the ties with stone ballast, most of which came from
Iethbridge Quarries. Quite o lot of the old grooved rails were replaced
with 801b. "Tee" rails, with =n angle strip bolted on the inside to form the
grooves A special oil road roller was mude in Ballarat by Jelbarts, who also
constructed another roller for the Bendifo systeéme The work of treating all
routes took sbout 3 years to complete. During the reconstruction of the
Mfain Road track, the crown of the street was cut down, and during the process,
many ges and water service pipes had to be renewed. It was quite a messi
But Bridge Strect was worseb This meznt closing the street to ordinary road
traffic and for = short timc the two trame for Victoria Street and Mt
Plecsunt came into the City as far us the Junction Curage. Both trams were
parkcd overnight in Bridge Strects  During this work of relaying and re-
sleepering of Bridge Street tracks, both the Gas Coy. and Water Commission
were busy renewing their pipes. The reilways ran special ballast trains
from Lethbridpge, while Bendigo Tramways sent all their track equipment,
including their oil roller, so that the work could be completed without
delaye. One could be forgiven for thinking & bomb had lasnded in the street.

st the ends of both Iydisrd Street North (Gregory Street)
and Victoria Street, the old tracks ended ez & parallel sidings.
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Perhaps they were to be pu: sing loopéj-when and if the lince were extended.
(Victoria Street was to be extended to the Hailwsy Bridge, but nothing

became of it)»
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In 1937, the ILydiard Street North lin: wuy extonded iron Cropory Street to
Norman Strect, « distance of 45¢b chalnss The old parallel siding at the
old terminus was pulled out and = new loop put down some yards further
north. This section was opened on 2tth hugust, 1937, at 11.00 aemse The
first car Noe 32 wes driven by ifayor Je Pryor, over the new section.

On the {ollowing day (& Sundsay), new through routing was
inaugurated and the elimination of th: 0ld city terminus at Grenville Street
cut out a lot of traffic congestion. The new through routing of care as
follows :-

Victoria Street to = Gardene via Sturt Streel West. .

ift. Pleasant to Cardens vie Drummond Street North

Iydiard St. North to Sobastopol

Iydiard St. North to  Rubicon Street (Removed to Grey St.)
(in recent yesrs. )

City ~ to View Point

City {(l4ain Street) to Sturt Street West (afternoons only)

The basic service of 2C minutes' frequency f'or all lines was
adopted, the exception being the View Point linc, which I think was cut out
altogether ot that time.

Until April, 1946, the trams were opersted as a one-man car
during the mornings. Trom the 8th April, 1945, conductors were provided for
each tram for the full periode Then on the 6th Uctober, 1952, one-man
operation was re-introduced during slack periods snd euch tramcar carried a
yellow painted bourd with "Piy as you Enter" in bleclie  One of the bogie
trams, No. 38, has been zltered to & one-man operation, as a trisl, in early
1953 .

The first lincs to have the “"Forest City" sipgnalling
( safeworking) equipment instelled woeVictorin Strmet and Mount Plessant,
followed by Bridge Street and the Gardong Reuwcer, al] in 1937. ILydierd
Street North and Sebsstopel routess were done the following vear. The only
line not equipped with the colaw=1ipht signalling ic tw View coin’ . dne
from Sturt Street to Macarthur Street, but as this line is serviced by eme
car, it made 1t unnecessasry to instsl the equipmente.
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Thie history could not hzve been written without the very
practical ercoursgement and help of the late lir. He H. Hornabrook, Mr. Te Ao
Parr, Mr. He Linaker, and iMessrs. C. Hodgson & We Lyons, and the author is
sincerely grateful.
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